
BUDGET COMMITTEE  
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, October 11, 2023 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mr. Cohen called this meeting of the Hopkinton Budget Committee to order at 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 

October, 11, 2023, in the large meeting room in the Hopkinton Town Hall. Those gathered recited the 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

Budget Committee 

Members Present:  Steve Reddy, Rob Nadeau, Mark Zankel, Ken Traum, Christa Scura, Jonathan 

Cohen, Debbie Norris, and Victoria Bram. Rich Houston joined via Zoom. 

Members Absent: Don Houston 

Staff Present: Kelly Henley-Finance Director 

Mr. Cohen made a motion to allow Mr. R. Houston to participate remotely. 

VOTE by roll call 

Voting in favor: Reddy, Nadeau, Zankel, Traum, Scura, Cohen, Norris, Bram; no votes 

against; abstain: R. Houston; Motion passed 8-0-1 

APPROVAL OF PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES  

Mr. Traum moved to approve the meeting minutes of September 13, 2023. Ms. Norris seconded the 

motion.  

VOTE by roll call 

Voting in favor: Nadeau, Traum, Scura, Norris, Bram, R. Houston;  no votes against; 

abstain: Reddy, Zankel, Cohen; Motion passed 6-0-3 

TOWN BUDGET UPDATE  

Mr. Traum provided an update of the town expenses and revenue through September. 

Revenue 

• Overall revenue is looking good. Due to timing a few items are currently behind.

• Noted that Motor vehicle dropped in August but is now back up in September.

• Last month’s misclassification has not been corrected yet. After the correction the Webster

landfill line and ambulance revenue will be in line with the budget projections.

• Mr. Zankel asked about the increase in interest revenue. Mr. Traum noted that moving some

funds including the road bond to a higher yield account has increased the amount of interest we

are receiving. Mr. Zankel asked how much of the interest is from the road bond. Ms. Henley

answered that roughly half of the $17,000 in interest received from the new account was

equivalent to the road bond funds.

Expenses 

• Cemetery line looks high still because there are funds that need to be reimbursed from the

Cemetery trustees and then we will be at 100%.



• 4325 Solid waste cleanup is low due to timing.  

• 4445 Vendor payments for Welfare assistance is running low. What we are speculating is that it 

might be because lower income households might be moving out of town due to high living 

costs.     

• Debt service interest and principal are done for the year.  

 

Mr. Reddy asked about the budget schedule and Mr. Traum stated that the dept heads are working on 

their budgets currently and the initial budget presentation to the board of selectmen is set for 

November 1st and department head presentation start on November 6th. 

 

CONTOOCOOK PRECINCT FINANCIAL UPDATE 

Mr. D. Houston was not in attendance.  

 

HOPKINTON VILLAGE PRECINCT FINANCIAL UPDATE 

Ms. Bram reported that at the last meeting she was interested in why the precinct’s net income was 

$53,000 in the red and now $86,000 this month. She found out that it is due to the system upgrade 

project (increasing the storage tanks) going over budget. The project is now complete, and they have 

changed operators.  

She also noted that they had some issues with their meeting minutes being written incorrectly and that 

contributed to DRA not being able to set the tax rate. It should be resolved now.  

  

Ms. Norris asked how the residents are responding to the increases. Ms. Bram will check to see what 

feedback they have received.  

 

HOPKINTON SCHOOL DISTRICT BUDGET UPDATE 

Ms. Norris liked how the memorandum was written up.  

 

Mr. Nadeau reported that he would walk through the MS-25 line by line to go over some of the language 

and highlights. 

 

  
 

• Interfund receivables show funds from the state and federal government grants.  

• Intergov’t Rec is money from the town, state and federal governments. 

• Other receivables are from things like preschool tuition. 

 

 

 



 
• Interfund payables are moving funds to the other funds.  

• Other payables are bills that were paid after June 30th. 

• Accrued expenses include accrued payroll. 

• Deferred revenues are from the booster club in 1st column, my school bucks under food service 

in 2nd column, donations under all other are in the 3rd column.  

 
• Reserve for prepaid expenses are expenses paid before July 1st but are for the budget starting 

after July 1st. 

• Reserve for encumbrances non lapsing are funds we received back from the state for NH 

Retirement. 

• Reserve for special purposes in 3rd column has a surplus of $81,037 due to food services sales 

being up and money from the state. In Capital project fund the $262,704 in the 4th column is 

money spent but not yet billed for the building project. Trust/Agency fund in the 4th column is 

from the spec ed trust, CIP, etc.   

 
• Tuition for out-of-town students. 

• Other revenue from local sources includes rebates. The 2nd column is a reference to food service 

sales, the 3rd column is referencing grants that are non-state/federal.  

 
• Catastrophic Aid is how they classify special ed.  



 
• Restricted Grants-in-aid from Fed Gov in general fund it is a reference to Medicaid in the 1st 

column, Food service fund in the 2nd column is money received from federal government for 

reduced breakfast/lunches, all other fund in column3 is referencing title 1, 2, 4, ADA safe 

schools, preschool.   

• Transfer from general funds includes artist in residence and the school portion of a sabbatical. 

The $525,000 is from warrant articles at town meeting.  

 
• Mr. Nadeau noted that support services is where he would like to track the last 10 years to 

forecast and see where the peaks and valleys are.  

• Facility Acquisition and Construction is for building maintenance projects that took place.  

• Transfer to other special revenue funds is also in reference to the sabbatical noted above.  

• The audit is usually available in November.   

 

Mr. Nadeau briefly went over the August financial statements. Also pointed out that they are looking 

into higher interest accounts. He answered the questions below.  

• Mr. Reddy asked about staffing. They are fully staffed except for a few open IA positions. Mr. 

Reddy also asked about the foreign exchange program and if there is a cost to the school district 

for the program. Mr. Nadeau confirmed there is no cost to the school district for this program. 

• The budget work session will be held next week. The school boards expectation is for the budget 

to remain as close to flat a possible.   



• Mr. Nadeau added that Michelle has announced that she is retiring in 2 years and the 

recommendation is to hire a replacement for Michelle that would have a 1-year overlap to train 

her replacement. There is one teacher position that they will not hire to help offset the cost. 

• Mr. Zankel asked about the school board policy for class size. Mr. Nadeau stated that they are 

related to grades. The younger grades would have lower class sizes than the upper grades.  

Which is how they were able to reduce the number of teachers in the 2nd grade.  

• Mr. Nadeau also stated speaking for himself and not the school board regarding the joint 

meeting with the housing committee. He hopes the housing committee keeps in mind that if 

there are large developments that are to be put in place, it needs to be done keeping in mind 

that the increase in students will mean that the schools will need more space/resources to 

accommodate the additional students.   

• Mr. Cohen followed up from last year his recollection was that Mike wanted to come up with a 

set number of students per class to make it more predictable. He is curious if it takes into 

consideration children with special needs or who require more attention based on age. Mr. 

Nadeau stated they looked at similar size schools not bigger city schools and they are taking that 

into account as well.  

• Ms. Bram asked about lead remediation. Is there any idea of the cost for lead remediation at 

Harold Martin. Mr. Nadeau couldn’t answer except for the fact that they were within the range 

of acceptable limits. He will investigate it further and try to provide more information.  

• Ms. Scura asked about progress update on the facilities position. Specifically progress on grants 

and increasing efficiencies. Mr. Nadeua said he can address financial impact, but actual progress 

should be addressed at a school board meeting.  

• Ms. Scura asked about CIP projects and asked if the budget committee can be made aware of the 

CIP projects. Mr. Nadeau stated that during the budget process the CIP could be presented.  

• Ms. Norris asked for status of the lawsuits. Mr. Nadeau stated there is no new news on them at 

this time.  

 

PRESENTATION OF BUDGET ANANLYSIS 

Mr. Zankel created a spreadsheet that tracked 20 years of data to analyze the percentage change in the 

town budget vs the consumer price index or other benchmarks over time. He worked with Neal Cass to 

collect the data on past town budgets to analyze. Mr. Traum asked if there would be a way to take 

certain factors into account like population changes and other factors.   

Mr. Nadeau expressed concerns about using CPI as a reference point. There are other measures such as 

personal consumption expenditures. Mr. Zankel asked if Mr. Nadeau could discuss other benchmarks 

that might be better to use before the next meeting. Mr. Zankel’s goal is to compare the town budget to 

a benchmark to see how the expenses are increasing compared to outside factors and was open to 

discussing what factors would work best. Next meeting the budget committee will view the spreadsheet 

and discuss it.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Loren Clement of 86 maple Street commented.  

• CIP items came in higher than expected because of price increases and that looking at that data 

would be helpful.  



• In reference to the lead detected at Harold Martin he spoke to Jim and was told that the State 

changed their standard of parts per million which is why the school was flagged. It was not 

because the school’s numbers increased.  Ms. Bram said except for the one that was like 1000% 

above the limit, that one would have been flagged regardless of the change. Mr. Clement said he 

was not aware of that. Ms. Scura asked if any of those readings were from the water fountains 

and Mr. Clement stated that they were not water fountains. One was in a boiler room.  

• Regarding the housing situation, his understanding is that the housing committee is only 

gathering information and not putting forth any recommendations. However, the planning board 

has zoning changes it is putting forward at their next meeting and voting on some to make 

changes to the TIF’s at Exit 6, Harts Corner, Burnham Intervale, and the old paper mill site. They 

are looking for input from the public. Personally, I think that it is a lot to take on not only with 

the school but for police and fire as well. 

• Regarding the school budget year end, I wish there was a 1-page analysis to make this clearer. 

Also stated concerns about the school budget being bloated. Noted the $200,000 returned to 

this year’s operating budget points to an overinflated budget.    

 

Mr. Nadeau clarified that the $200,000 amount that Mr. Clement was referring to is an increase in 

revenue not under spent expenditures. The $200,000 is a reduction of the tax rate not an increase in the 

budget. The extra funds resulted from a change in the states adequacy formulas. 

 

Mr. Cohen closed public comment. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

• Mr. Zankel asked about the December meetings. Mr. Traum said that December 6 (town budget 

presentation) & December 13 (town budget follow up). Mr. Zankel said that ideally the school 

would present at the January 10th meeting. Mr. Traum said the precincts would need to be in 

there too.   

• Next budget committee meeting will be Wednesday November 8th. 

• Mr. Zankel wanted to bring up the discussion on the role of the budget committee at the last 

meeting and about the possibility of having a presentation from NHMA on the subject. Ms. Scura 

clarified that it was at the end of the last budget season that the discussion started, and at the 

last meeting some committee members were not in attendance. Mr. Traum said that a 

presentation could be arranged. Mr. Reddy said that the summary document from NHMA that 

was sent out was straightforward and does not feel that a presentation is necessary. Ms. Bram 

stated it is clear what the budget committee is permitted to do in the RSA, and it includes 

conferring with other governing bodies, officers, department heads, and other officials. Mr. 

Traum said that is after the town or school presents their budget, which is something that has 

been offered all along. Discussion ensued on class sizes and what matters are more appropriate 

to have a school board meeting vs at a budget committee meeting. Discussion ensued on the 

budget committee’s role and getting information from department heads. Mr. Traum stated that 

department heads will be presenting to the selectboard in November if any budget committee 

members would like to attend, they could hear the budget presentation. More discussion ensued 

on whether the budget committee would like to have NHMA do a presentation. 

 



Mr. Zankel made a Motion to have the town administrator invite NHMA to come in to do a presentation.  

Mr. Nadeau seconded the motion.  

VOTE by roll call  

Voting in favor: Nadeau, Zankel, Scura, R. Houston, Norris, Bram; voting against: Reddy, 

Traum, Cohen; abstain: 0; Motion passed 6-3-0 

 

 

ADJORNMENT 

There being no further business, Mr. Cohen made a motion to adjourn at 7:37pm.  Ms. Scura seconded 

the motion. 

VOTE by roll call  

Voting in favor: Reddy, Nadeau, Zankel, Traum, Scura, Cohen, R. Houston, Norris, Bram; 

voting against: 0; abstain: 0; Motion passed 9-0-0 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Kelly Henley 

Finance Director 

 

 

 


